PRELIMINARY MINUTES

VILLAGE OF LUDLOW
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, September 5, 2023
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE PUBLIC HEARING

6:00 PM

HEALD AUDITORIUM

Village Trustees Meeting — Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 984 2249 8745
Passcode: 045593

One tap mobile

+13126266799, 98422498745#,,,,*045593# US (Chicago)
+16469313860, 98422498745#,,,,*045593# US

Dial by your location

https://zoom.us/u/acaJsrnL7x

TRUSTEES PRESENT:

Bob Brandt, Chairman Justin Hyjek Earl Washburn
STAFF:
Brendan McNamara Ulla Cook

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:
Terry Carter Judy Pullinen Ted Stryhas
Andrea Goldman Ryan Silvestri Steve Meyers — Alternate Member

OTHERS PRESENT:

Eric Alden Alexandra Horst Andrea Sanford
Scott Baitz Heather Kelly Robert Sanford
Lynn Baldwin Craig Kovalsky Bruce Schmidt
Jackie Cromwell John Neal Jean Strong

Mark Cromwell Rebecca Prasse George Tucker, Jr.

1. Call To Order

A.  Bob Brandt, in accordance with 24 VSA 4441 and 24 VVSA 4444, called the Public Hearing to
order at 6:00 p.m. (Entire Warning is included at the end of tonight’s minutes.)

B.  John Neal said that in the proposed regulation changes, the Employee Housing should have a
broader perspective. He said that Section B1 requires that the employee provide busing. He
said that Okemo can do that, but other businesses may not be able to do it. He also objected to
requiring the employee to sign an agreement to provide such busing. Why not take it as a sign



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 2 of 17

rRe T

s<c

of good will. Employee Housing includes diversity and equity. Work Force Housing is what it
is. We provide housing for other businesses’ staff. He said that he and Bruce Schmidt are
committed to helping supply housing for employees. He added that there is not a lot of housing
available especially that would be affordable. How can we get better? Housing within the
Village is close to services and food. The Planning Commission needs more time to refine and
capture everything that is needed. He called for comments.

Terry Carter said this has been collaboration and the Planning Commission is willing to make
changes to Work Force Housing. The Planning Commission has worked several months and
done a lot of research. We are open to tweaking work force housing. She agreed that everyone
is not able to provide buses.

Bob Brandt read the warning (copy attached)

Andrea Goldman said that there has been a representative from Okemo at all of their meetings.
The Planning Commission has always been willing to work with Okemo. To say no to these
amendments would be a disservice to the town.

John Neal said that the minimum square footage works for new housing, but, there is not a lot
of new housing. He said that they try to utilize the space and the limits are restrictive. They
have a team that provides oversight of the housing.

Justin Hyjek said they are touching on some points, but the Planning Commission did the heavy
lifting. He said that the minimum square footage is listed for single/double. There is no
language for further occupancy. What is the threshold? What is the rule about bathrooms?
State law is 8 people per bathroom. They need clarifying language.

Terry Carter said they can add language per bedroom. They can’t go less. They need to talk
about changing the square footage.

Ryan Silvestri said 2 occupants per bedroom per the fire Marshall

Justin Hyjek said 6 per single room — 400 to 500 square feet

John Neal said Okemo goes by comfortable carrying capacity not by square footage

Justin Hyjek said there probably would not be much new development in the near future. Don’t
take the language out pertaining to new development. He commented that Employee Housing
could be listed as employee provided housing. They should update the B&B, Boarding House
and Inn definitions and add more details to the definition for STR.

Ryan Silvestri asked for suggestions. He also asked if there should be a difference between
Homestead and non-Homestead filers.

Justin Hyjek said STR is less than 30 days, but the state definition is at least one day per year.
We need to align our definitions with the state definitions.

Eric Alden said the state rules are 70 square feet for the 1% person and 50 square feet for each
additional person. He added that there is a law suit in Burlington one imposed that the
municipality can’t dictate on how much the owners uses their properties. He suggested that
they look into that litigation.

Justin Hyjek said he would look into it.

Eric Alden referred to Section 520.12, Section B and asked if an accessory building is
considered a principle use if it is the only structure on the lot and conforms to regulations.
Terry Carter said that part of employee housing includes changes of use and the DRB asked the
Planning Commission about it. This is not about STR.

Jackie Cromwell asked if a single family home is used as Employee housing, is it then a
Rooming House and what permits are needed.

Terry Carter said it is being put in the VRC as a permitted use and Rose Goings may sign off on
it. This does not include the Village Residential.

Jackie Cromwell asked about the limit to 8 bedrooms.

Terry Carter said the Planning Commission decided to limit it.

Ryan Silvestri said there are not many 8 bedroom homes in the VRC. . He said that for
Employee Housing there is no limit on the number of bedrooms -except by square footage.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023

Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 3 of 17
X.  Justin Hyjek asked about work force housing.
Y.  Terry Carter said work force housing is not in there. It is separate and goes into Rooming or

BB.
CC.
DD.
EE.

FF.
GG.

HH.

JJ.

KK.

LL.

MM.

NN.

00.
PP

QQ.
RR.

SS.

Boarding House.

George Tucker said to look at the number of bedrooms. How is an Inn affected? He said the
Town and Village need parking. If you have 25 bedrooms for an inn, that is huge. What is
motel, a hotel and an inn vs. a B&B.?

Terry Carter said that the Planning Commission would be working on Motel and Hotel at their
next meeting.

Bob Brandt asked if there is a new definition in Article 7. He read the warning

Jackie Cromwell asked what if an inn does not provide meals, and then there is no definition.
Terry Carter said the Planning Commission can change the definition to “may provide meals.”
Bruce Schmidt said that he is concerned about the need for workforce housing and that these
regulations will take away from workforce housing. He encourages the Trustees to send this
back to the Planning Commission. We commit to be more of a stakeholder and work with the
Planning Commission. He repeated the he encourages the Trustees to send this back.

Andrea Goldman asked Bruce Schmidt for more specifics.

Bruce Schmidt said to look into square footage and focus on proposed shuttles. There are
changes that are needed and Okemo will commit to being a part of this.

Terry Carter said if square footage is a concern, it could be 40 square feet per person and they
added to it. The Planning Commission is not unreasonable, but we need to add language and
limit it to 8 persons per bedroom.

John Neal said Okemo looks at safety first. He said that the Fire Marshall does a thorough
inspection and sets the tone. He tells you what he wants you to do and Okemo follows that. He
will give you the number of people and is disconnected from square footage. The Fire Marshall
won'’t let us put people in an unsafe place. This is the state level vs. the town level and he
always goes by the Fire Marshall rules.

Andrea Goldman said that not every owner does what Okemo does and if there were no
regulations, we may have more unsafe conditions. We are looking at safety and habitability.
We are trying not to be vague. We look at the density in the neighborhood, but also want to
encourage workforce housing and within % mile of public transportation don’t need a shuttle.
Terry Carter said that neighbors of the Andrea Rose have complained about garbage and noise.
Also, lack of refrigeration — people were putting food in the snow to keep it cold. The
neighbors went to all of the boards. She said that she hopes the Trustees don’t kick this back.
John Neal said Safety. They need to look at the regulations. What does our stewardship
program look like for work force housing? The big picture is to provide safety and the best
experience for our employees.

Steve Meyers said that 8 people per bedroom and 8 people to a bathroom and 40 square feet —
not a better place. Other than J1 housing- someone who does not care. We need to shoot for
more affordable family-type housing.

Brendan McNamara said this is up to the board. They have said to send it back to the Planning
Commission. He suggested tabling this to clean it up. This needs more discussion, at least
about definitions and room size.

Justin Hyjek said that the state will not allow less than 8 persons per bedroom.

Steve Meyers said that the Planning Commission came up with 8/bathroom at a meeting.
Terry Carter said that is a state regulation.

Andrea Goldman this is not asking you to build these, but to prevent abuse of employees. We
don’t want uninhabitable situations.

Hearing called at 6:48 p.m.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 4 of 17

2.

Action on the proposed additions and changes to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood

Hazard Requlations

@ m mo o W e o

A

dvwxOoTvozIr

Add to Article 4 Section 430, Boarding House/Rooming House to the permitted uses of the
Village R-C District
Add a new section “Employee Housing” (Section 520.15) and a new section “Conversions and
Changes of Use” (Section 520.14) in the Village of Ludlow’s Zoning and Flood Hazard
Regulations
Add new definitions to Article 7
Modify existing definitions in Article 7
Bob Brandt read the above.
MOTION by Justin Hyjek, based on the comments made earlier, to send this back to the
Planning Commission to update the definitions, and bring back to this board, as one
document, in October.
Earl Washburn said that this was a good discussion, but it is a far from finished document.
Bob Brandt said that Trustees need to make a decision.
Terry Carter said that the Planning Commission needs to complete the work for the grant by
November. We will get matching funds. She asked how the Trustees would feel about adding
40 square feet for each additional person.
Eric Alden suggested that the state guideline is 70/50.
Terry Carter asked the board to act on the definitions for tonight. She asked them which
changes would be acceptable to the board.
Justin Hyjek said that 25 guest rooms for an inn is large. He suggested they clarify Employee
housing and Workforce housing.
Brendan McNamara suggested that the document be kept as a whole.
Eric Alden urged the board to make some kind of decision tonight, possibly if some parts are
not in contention.
Bruce Schmidt said that he does not believe that they can break it up and must act on the entire
package. He told them to be cautious.
Eric Alden said that Bruce Schmidt is correct.
Terry Carter said that it was warned as separate parts.
Justin Hyjek asked Brendan McNamara if it was warned as one warning.
Eric Alden said that Bruce Schmidt said it was all one.
Earl Washburn said he wants the Planning Commission to bring this back as one document.
Andrea Goldman asked the board to reject is by pieces - that would be acting on everything.
Judy Pullinen said it could be amended.
Justin Hyjek asked if a motion can be proposed by pieces.
Bruce Schmidt said that there is a consensus to the Planning Commission and this board should
tell the Planning Commission what it wants. He said that people will look at this as a whole
process with a main heading and A, B, C, etc.
George Tucker, Jr. said the town has many cases in court and this board should settle on the
side of caution.
Terry Carter said the Planning Commission will have to have a lawyer at it, but they would
need the whole document, not pieces.
Judy Pullinen summarized the desired changes
i. Bus service is hard to provide and they may consider more than % mile, maybe % mile.

ii.  Clarification of Employee housing vs. workforce housing

iii.  Single/Double — no square footage listed for more. She said that Eric Alden advised that

the state guideline is 70/50.
iv.  Add more detail to the definition of STR
v. Homestead references is not allowed.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 5 of 17

George Tucker, Jr. said they should also look at changing the maximum number of bedrooms
for an inn from 25 to 15 and change the definition of inn.

Y. Terry Carter said that employers don’t have to provide housing.

Z.  Justin Hyjek said that if businesses have workforce housing, it is conditioned by the DRB and
they don’t have to provide transportation.

AA. Earl Washburn noted that Justin Hyjek had made a motion earlier to send this back to
the Planning Commission and to bring it back as one package, not piece meal. He
seconded that motion.

BB. Andrea Goldman requested a specific time frame.

CC. Brendan McNamara said October 2, 2023. The Planning Commission meeting in on September
19, 2023.

DD. Terry Carter said that the Planning Commission can tweak it and return.

EE. Brendan McNamara said that another public hearing is not needed; it can be an agenda item.

FF. Motion passed unanimously.

3. Adjourn and Convene to Trustees’ Regular Meeting
A. Bob Brandt convened the regular meeting of the Trustees.

4, Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda
A. Bob Brandt advised that no changes are needed.
5. Approve Minutes from Previous Meetings
A. Bob Brandt advised the minutes to be approved are from the regular meeting on August 1,
2023.
B. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Earl Washburn to approve minutes from the
regular meeting of August 1, 2023 as submitted. Motion passed unanimously.
6. Comments from Citizens
A. Jean Strong encouraged everyone to attend the Planning Commission meeting on September 19,
2023.
B.  Easing of Zoning Requirements

i. Eric Alden said that local businesses are having a difficult time pulling back from this and
getting businesses back together. He said that he is asking the Select Board and Trustees to
work on easing the requirements. He said that the businesses have to go through the DRB,
federal, and state permitting requirements and are overburdened with the requirements. The
businesses in the lower level of the Mill, lost flooring, tiles and in order to reconstruct what
was there, they have to go to the DRB. The deadline to file for a hearing is 5 weeks before
the hearing date and they have to wait 2 %2 months. The DRB is requiring the same things
as a new Jackson Gore project and this is ridiculous. All they need is lighting, sheetrock,
carpet and tile. The DRB wants engineering, elevations and letters from all Ludlow
services. He said that Café at the Light just wants to put things back. Has the town
considered relaxing the requirements? There is no reason the businesses have to do all of
those things just to replace what was there. He said that having to have engineering



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 6 of 17

drawings is unnecessary. This board should think about relaxing those requirements to help
the businesses. He said that they are holding up our hearing for a letter from the
Ambulance Department. He said that the DRB only meets once per month and it should
met twice per month.

7. Sewer Billing Requests

A.

Change of Use Only — no change in allocation — Okemo Marketplace — Fitness Center vacant

and will be occupied by Darkside Snowboards.

i. Brendan McNamara said that this is just a change of use and no change in allocation.

Abatement Request — 3-lot subdivision on Prospect Street — Robert Sullivan

i. Brendan McNamara said that a letter was received from Robert Sullivan requesting
abatement for paid allocation. This was a 3-lot subdivision for 3 single family, 3 bedroom
homes. They paid the allocation and semi-annual billing. He said that his recommendation
is that this is a precedent that they should not set.

ii. MOTION by Justin Hyjek and seconded by Earl Washburn to deny this request.
Motion passed unanimously.

8. FEMA Update

A.

Brendan McNamara said that he had the scope meeting with FEMA last Tuesday and will be
having weekly meetings. We are in a good spot. The cost of recovery for the Town is about
$1,000,000 and for the Village about $200,000. We have 60 days to add projects to FEMA for
reimbursement. Jewel Brook and the sewer line behind Village Pizza. We did site visits and
FEMA is only visiting project less than 80% complete. We are looking at the cemetery
spillway and the Pond Street Bridge. We have been documenting everything. FEMA will
reimburse 75% and the State will reimburse 12%. We need to get the funds back so we can pay
the bills.

9. Replacement of Commonwealth Avenue Culvert Discussion

A.

w

nmoo

Brendan McNamara said that he is looking for guidance from the board. This issue has been
discussed before and the culvert runs under Route 103 by Meadow Street to the Black River. It
is in dire need of replacement. Years ago, the price was about $2 to $3 million dollars. The
hydraulic and engineering studies were done. We need to do it sooner than later. It will be a
long, project and the state will be involved. He said he is looking for consensus to move
forward and he doesn’t know what kind of funds may be available. He would like approval to
move forward pending funding.

Justin Hyjek said it has been being discussed for a while and now is the time to see if we can
get flood resiliency repair funds.

Earl Washburn agreed.

Eric Alden asked if they will be replacing the Mill Street Bridge.

Brendan McNamara said it will be redone as a footbridge, but is not on a priority list.

Justin Hyjek agreed that it is in bad shape.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 7 of 17

10.

11.

12.

13.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Status Update

A

Brendan McNamara said that FEMA has put this on the priority list and has moved it up the
ladder. The project managers have mobilized to get it back to permanent status. “Best Option
for the town.” They will be raising the buildings, the generator is tilted. Concrete pillars will
have to be bored into the ground. We are working at a capacity that if it snows tomorrow, we
can handle the impact of ski traffic. It will be hard and unpleasant work.

Justin Hyjek asked the costs.

Brendan McNamara said about $7 to $10 million to build it back to the 500 year flood. He said
that 2 of the clarifiers are below state levels and have to be built up. He said that wiring will be
a big thing. There has to be an option to slow the water. This storm — the force of the water.

He said the conduit was ripped. He said that the Federal mitigation specialist was here. We
need to put in a retaining wall to slow the water. We need to show that we are trying to prevent
this from happening again.

Lynn Baldwin asked if the dams had been dredged, would it have been this bad.

Brendan McNamara said that most of the damage to the Wastewater Treatment Facility was
before the spillways went over the top, but not having been dredged didn’t help.

Pond Street Bridge Replacement

A

Brendan McNamara advised that FEMA visited by the Fire Station and the bridge took the
brunt of the railroad crossing. It was undersized and it is a Class | highway. VTRANS took
ownership and the bridge will be replaced — in the not too distant future. Any rain will
jeopardize the road and there would be a danger of not being able to get the fire equipment out
of the station. They are moving to early next year.

Department Head Reports

A

Brendan McNamara said that the departments are in.

Aged Receivables Report:

A.

B.

Brendan McNamara said that he has been telling people about the VHAP funding and it
ends September 30", After that, demand letter will go out with notice of disconnect.
Justin Hyjek said he never wants to disconnect service, but there is $40,000 outstanding
over 120 days.

Brendan McNamara said that letters went out with information on VHAP, and he has
been trying to help people. VHAP would have paid the bills, but people had to apply.
He will help anyone who asks for help. He said that he never wants to deny people
utilities — it is a health issue. This would have to be a drop dead situation. There are
some with extenuating circumstances and we will not shut off their service. If people
are just ignoring it, we will show up with a wrench. This will be at the discretion of me
and my staff.

Justin Hyjek said the Village has a small operating budget and every little bit helps.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 8 of 17

14, Other Business

A. Dog Park
I. Justin Hyjek asked about the dog park and Fletcher fields and if they would be
consolidated. He said that people want the dog park back.

15. Municipal Manager Updates:

A.  Town wide Notification System
i. Brendan McNamara advised that he has researched a notification system that would allow
alerts for “Boil Water,” or Sewer pipe broke or Get out of Town. He said that not everyone
uses the town website. He is looking at a system that is user subscribed that will provide
notices by text, call or email. It would give notices for emergencies, short term water turn
off (for repairs) or even community events. We need this and the cost will be about
$4,000/year. He said the costs would be split between the Town and Village .He will solicit
pricing from other vendors. It would be administered by the office. The problem is how to
get people to subscribe. He said that there are too many different Facebook or other social
media pages — all with different information. This will come from the Police Department of
the Town Manager’s office. He will have more information for the next meeting. He
added that they will be putting a posting board outside the office
B.  Brendan McNamara advised that they received a grant for a back-up generator for the
Community Center
C. Brendan McNamara said that the Fire Department 5K Run was a success, with about 140
participants.
D. Shaw’s
i. Earl Washburn asked if there were any word about Shaw’s
ii. Brendan McNamara said that Shaw’s is on the DRB agenda and will be opening a “store
within a store.”
E.  National Disaster
i. Justin Hyjek asked about grants for national disasters and said that the Town seems to be
represented. He asked if — because the town and village are separate, if the Village is also
capturing funds.
ii. Brendan McNamara said that he explores both options.
iii. Justin Hyjek said the ARPA funds expire in 2025.

16. Set Date for Next Meeting

A. Next regular meeting will be on October 3, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.

17. Sign Warrant Orders

A. Bob Brandt said they would sign Warrant orders.

18. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues

A. Bob Brandt said that an Executive Session is not needed.



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023

Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 9 of 17
19.  Adjourn

A. MOTION to adjourn by Earl Washburn and seconded by Justin Hyjek. Motion passed

unanimously.
B.  Meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Lisha Klaiber

Bob Brandt, Chairman of Trustees Earl Washburn, Vice Chair

Justin Hyjek



Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 10 of 17

Public Hearing Notice
Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulation Amendments

Pursuant to 24 V.S.A. §4441 and §4444, notice is hereby given of a public hearing by the Ludlow Village Trustees to hear
comments regarding proposed amendments to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulation Amendments.
The public hearing will take place during the Village Trustees meeting on Tuesday, September 5, 2023, beginning at 6:00
pm.

You may attend the Public Hearing in-person at the following address:
Ludlow Town Hall

37 Depot Street

Ludlow, Vermont 05149

Comments regarding the proposed amendments to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulation
Amendments may be submitted verbally at the Public Heanng Written comments may also be submitted via email to
Terry Carter, Ludlow Planning Commission Chair, at t:: g , or Martha Harrison, Mount Ascutney
Regional Commission, at mharrison@marcvt.org , or Bob Brandt, Vlllage Trustee, at bobibrandt@gmail.com.

Pursuant to the requirements of 24 V.S.A. §4444(b):

Statement of purpose:

The purpose of the proposed amendments is as follows:

e to ensure that employee housing meets the needs of employees, employers, and abutting property owners;
e to clarify the difference between residential and commercial structures and uses;

e to establish permitting and review processes for employee housing and changes of use;

¢ to allow for reductions in minimum parking requirements for employee housing under certain circumstances;
e to add Boarding House/Rooming House to the Village R-C as a permitted use;

e to incorporate new and modified definitions in Article 7.

e to modify Section 520.14 Conversions and Changes of Use

Geographic areas affected:

Portions of these amendments apply to all areas of the Village.

List of section headings affected:

The proposed amendments make the following modifications to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard
Regulation Amendments:

e Article 4, Section 430 is modified to include, Boarding House/Rooming House to the permitted uses of the
Village R-C District.

e Article 5 (General Regulations) is modified to include new Section 520.14 Conversions and Changes of Use, and
new Section 520.15 Employee Housing.

o Article 7 is modified to include the following new definitions: employee housing, transient, short-term.

o Article 7 is modified to include the following revised definitions: Bed & Breakfast, Boarding House/Rooming
House, Inn.

The full text of the amendments to the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulations is available online at
hilps.//www.ludiow.vi.us ¢ The proposed amendments can be reviewed in hard copy format in the Town Clerk’s Office in
the Ludlow Town Hall located at 37 Depot Street, Ludlow, VT 05149.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 11 of 17

Public Hearing Village Trustees 2023

Tuesday — September 5, 6:00
Ludlow Municipal Building

The Planning Commission will be participating at Public
Hearing of the Village Trustees for the purpose of the
following amendments:

« Add to Article 4 Section 430, Boarding House/Rooming House to
the permitted uses of the Village R-C District

» Add a new section “Employee Housing” (Section 520.15) and a
new section “Conversions and Changes of Use” (Section 520.14) in
the Village of Ludlow’s Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations
Add new definitions to Article 7

« Modify existing definitions in Article 7




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 12 of 17

SECTION 430 - VILLAGE R-C DISTRICT

The purpose of the Village R-C District is to serve as the
focus of social and economic activities in the community.
Served by public water and sewer services, sidewalks and
an urban roadway network, this area provides for the
highest-density of commercial, civic, residential and other
compatible development in the community. Residential or
professional office uses are encouraged in the upper floors
above commercial uses in this area. This District includes
the Village Center that serves as Ludlow’s traditional,
compact commercial center that has a mix of commercial,
civic and residential uses, and public gathering places. This
District also includes adjacent mixed use areas that are
encouraged to redevelop as an extension of the traditional
village center, following the same traditional village land
development patterns with multi-modal transportation
infrastructure (i.e. sidewalks, on-street parking, bus stops,
street trees and other pedestrian amenities).

Description: Zoning Map is official delineation of District.

Permitted Uses:

1) Single-unit dwelling

2) Two-unit dwelling

3) Accessory use or building

4) Home occupation

5) Home child care

6) Accessory apartment

7) Governmental recreation area
8) Additions or alterations

| 9) Boarding/Rooming House9)-BeardingiRooming-House




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 13 of 17

Proposed New Section
SECTION 520.15 - EMPLOYEE HOUSING

Any residential structure, including single-unit, two-unit and multi-unit dwellings,
accessory dwelling units, and rooming/boarding houses, but excluding short-term
commercial lodging facilities such as Tourist Homes, Bed & Breakfasts, Inns and Hotels, may
be used for employee housing provided that it complies with the following standards:

A. Converting a permitted residential use (single-unit, two-unit, or accessory dwelling
unit) to a conditional residential use (multi-unit dwelling or rooming/boarding
house) shall be considered a Change of Use in accordance with Section 520.14 of the
Zoning Regulations.

B. Employee housing shall comply with all district, specific, and general requirements
of the Zoning Regulations, and all other applicable local regulations currently in
effect, including, but not limited to, Section 530 (Parking & Loading Requirements)
of the Zoning Regulations, which may be reduced at the discretion of the
Development Review Board under the following conditions:

1. The employer signs a written agreement to provide the employees occupying
the housing with transportation to and from their place of employment; or

2. The housing is within 0.25 miles of a stop for a public, or employer-provided,
transportation system which also has a stop at the place of employment
during the employee work hours.

C. The applicant is obligated to obtain all necessary state permits, and provide all
required certifications, including but not limited to:

1. A Wastewater System & Potable Water Supply permit;

2. Certification that the structure complies with the requirements of the
Vermont Residential Building Energy Standards in accordance with 24 V.S.A.
§4449 and 30 V.S.A. §51; and

3. Any other permits or approvals, which may be required by:

a. The Vermont Department of Health’s Rental Housing Health Code, as most
recently adopted;

b. The Vermont Department of Public Safety’s Division of Fire Safety;

c. Other state agencies.

D. The minimum square footage for a single occupancy bedroom shall be 80 square feet. The
minimum square footage for a double occupancy bedroom shall be 120 square feet.

E. There shall be at least one bathroom including a sink, toilet and bathtub/shower for every 8
persons occupying a residential structure that is being used for employee housing.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 14 of 17

EMPLOYEE HOUSING: Housing that is owned, leased, sub-leased, controlled or facilitated
by an employer and provided for the occupancy of the employee in conjunction with their
employment and, if applicable, the employee’s family or household members. In addition, if
an employer is receiving any remuneration from the housing of its employees then such
housing is considered to be employee housing.

Current Definition:

BED AND BREAKFAST: An owner occupied home, in which the owner rents guest rooms
and serves breakfast only to those guests as part of the room rent

Current Definition:

BOARDING HOUSE/ROOMING HOUSE: Buildings in which rooms are rented, with some or
all meals provided, to three (3) or more persons. A boarding house shall have no more than
eight (8) sleeping rooms for rent. See Lodging House.

Proposed Definition:

Current Definition
INN: A commerecial facility for the housing of transients, and which may offer meal service.

SHORT-TERM: Less than thirty (30) days.

TRANSIENT: A short-term guest whose permanent address for legal purposes is not the
lodging facility where they are staying.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 15 of 17

SECTION 520.14 - CONVERSIONS AND CHANGES OF USE {new section)

Conversions or changes in the use of land and/or existing structures are subject to the
provisions of this bylaw as follows:

A. The proposed use is subject to all the requirements of this bylaw pertaining to such use,
including but not limited to any district, general or specific requirements, as well as
subdivision regulations and all other municipal regulations currently in effect.

B. An accessory structure, such as a garage or barn, may be converted to a principal use
allowed within the district in which it is located only:

1. If the structure is located on a subdivided lot which conforms to the lot size,
setback, parking, and other requirements applicable to the relevant district and
proposed use; or,

2. If the zoning district in which it is located allows more than one principal use on a
lot and all requirements applicable to the relevant district and proposed use can
be met.

C. A conversion or change of use from one permitted use to another permitted use which
involves the creation of new floor space or outdoor storage space, requires additional
on-site parking, or has different minimum lot size or dimensional requirements, will
require a zoning permit issued by the Administrative Officer under Section 220.

D. A conversion or change from a permitted use to a conditional use, or from a conditional
use to a different conditional use, may be approved by the Development Review Board
subject to conditional use review under Section 260.

E. A conversion or change of use involving a nonconforming use and/or structure is also
subject to review under Section 261.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 16 of 17

Village Trustees Reporting Form for
Municipal Bylaw Amendments

This report is in accordance with 24 V.S.A. §4441(c) which states:

“When considering an amendment to a bylaw, the planning commission shall prepare and approve a
written report on the proposal. A single report may be prepared so as to satisfy the requirements of this
subsection concerning bylaw amendments and subsection 4384(c) of this title concerning plan
amendments..... The report shall provide (:)

(A) brief explanation of the proposed bylaw, amendment, or repeal and include a statement of purpose as
required for notice under §4444 of this title,

The proposed amendment would:
¢ Add to Article 4 Section 430, Boarding House/Rooming House to the permitted uses of the Village R-C
District
* Add a new section “Employee Housing” (Section 520.15) and a new section “Conversions and Changes of
Use” (Section 520.14) in the Village of Ludlow’s Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations
* Add new definitions to Article 7
*  Modify existing definitions in Article 7

The purpose of the proposed amendments is to ensure that employee housing meets the needs of
employees, employers, and abutting property owners; to clarify the difference between residential and
commercial structures and uses; to establish permitting and review processes for changes of use; and to
allow for reductions in minimum parking requirements for employee housing under certain
circumstances.

(A)nd shall include findings regarding how the proposal:

1. Conforms with or furthers the goals and policies contained in the municipal plan, including the effect
of the proposal on the availability of safe and affordable housing:

As stated in the Municipal Plan for the Town and Village of Ludlow, VT “one of the most significant
challenges to local economic development efforts is a lack of available quality housing that workers
can afford, considering the average wages of residents.” To address this challenge, the Municipal
Plan establishes the following policies:

» Encourage the rehabilitation of larger buildings located within the village for safe and affordable
housing;

+ Expand housing options that support local businesses, such as increasing the availability of rental
properties for seasonal employees, and

« Expand housing options by adding Boarding House/Rooming House to the permitted uses in the
commercial district.




Village of Ludlow — Board of Trustees September 5, 2023
Preliminary Meetings Minutes Page 17 of 17

2. Is compatible with the proposed future land uses and densities of the municipal plan:
The Village Center and the adjacent mixed-use areas are identified in the future land use section of
the municipal plan as providing “for the highest density of commercial, civic, residential and other
compatible development in the community.” The Village Residential/Commercial neighborhoods are
also identified as an “area [that] shall allow for a mix of compatible housing types that serve a broad
spectrum of income levels.” Allowing employee housing in multi-unit dwellings and
rooming/boarding houses in these districts is compatible with the uses and densities outlined in the
municipal plan.

3. Carries out, as applicable, any specific proposals for any planned community facilities.”

The proposed amendments are not specifically applicable to planned community facilities.

Please Note:

{1 The Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing within the municipality after
public notice on any proposed bylaw, amendment or repeal and;

{1 At least 15 days prior to the first hearing, a copy of the proposed plan or amendment and the
written report shall be delivered with proof of the receipt, or mailed by certified mail, retum
receipt requested, to each of the following:

1. the chairperson of the Village Trustees of each abutting municipality, or in the absence of any
planning commission in an abutting municipality, to the clerk of that abutting municipality;

2. the executive director of the regional planning commission of the area in which the
municipality is located,;

3. the Department of Economic, Housing and Community Development within the Agency of
Commerce and Community Development.

1 The Village Trustees may revise the proposed bylaw, amendment, or repeal and to the written
report, and shall then submit the proposed bylaw, amendment or repeal and the written report to
the legislative body of the municipality. If requested by the legislative body or supported by
petition the planning commission shall promptly submit the amendment with changes only to
correct technical deficiencies, together with any recommendations.

0 Simultaneously, with the submission, the Village Trustees shall file with the clerk of the
municipality a copy of the proposed bylaw, amendment, or repeal, and the written report for
public review.




